
 

AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 28, 2019 

 

PAGE 1 OF 2 

 

CALL TO ORDER: 

 

  

INTRODUCTION OF LATE ITEMS: 

 

- Resolution required to add late items, if any 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA: 

 

- Resolution to adopt the Agenda for the May 23, 

2019, Regular Meeting. 

 

MINUTES: 

 

- Resolution to adopt the Minutes of the May 14, 2019, 

Regular Meeting 

 

PETITIONS & DELEGATIONS: 

 

  

Disc Golf Presentation   

 

- Tyler Perrault 

PUBLIC QUESTIONS & 

COMMENTS: 

 

-  

 

OLD BUSINESS: 

 

- Nil 

CORRESPONDENCE FOR 

INFORMATION: 

 

- Resolution to receive the following items for 

information: 

• Invitation to Sam Steele Days - June 13-16, 2019 

(City of Cranbrook – Mayor Lee Pratt) 

• BC Rural Dividend program - 6th Intake 

• “One River: Ethics Matter” International 

Conference (Selkirk College – Allison Lutz, 

Geography/Hydrology Instructor) 

 

STAFF REPORTS: 

 

- Resolution to receive the following items for 

information: 

• Kootenay Cannabis Symposium Report (RDCK - 

Ron LeBlanc, Slocan Valley Economic 

Development Coordinator) 

 

COUNCIL REPORTS: 

 

  

Verbal Reports 

 

-  

Regional District of Central Kootenay 

 

-  

West Kootenay Boundary Regional 

Hospital District 

 

-  

Recreation Commission #6 

 

-  

1



2



PAGE 2 OF 2 

 

Economic Development Commission 

 

-  

Rosebery Parklands & Trail Commission 

 

-  

Treaty Advisory Committee 

 

-  

Fire Department Committee 

 

-  

NEW BUSINESS: 

 

  

 - Treaty Advisory Commission Meeting  

 

 - Sustainability Committee Appointments 

 

 - Credit Card Application 

 

RDCK – Meeri Durand, Senior Project 

Planer 

- RDCK Housing Needs Assessment 

 

 - Appointment of Approving Officer 

 

MOTION TO EXCLUDE: 

 

  

 - Moved by Councillor _____ and seconded that the 

public interest requires that, as per section 90(1) (c) 

of the Community Charter, persons other than 

members of Council and the Acting CAO be 

excluded from the meeting as it pertains to personnel 

matters. 

 

RECONVENE IN CAMERA: 

 

  

 - Moved by Councillor _____ and seconded that 

Council recess and reconvene in camera at _____ 

p.m. 

 

RECONVENE IN OPEN MEETING: 

 

  

 - Moved by Councillor _____ and seconded that 

Council reconvene in open meeting at _____ p.m. 

 

RESOLUTIONS BROUGHT 

FORWARD FROM IN CAMERA: 

 

  

 - Moved by Councillor _____ and seconded that 

Resolution#_____ be brought forward to the public 

portion of the meeting. 

 

ADJOURNMENT: 

 

  

 - Resolution to adjourn the meeting at ___ p.m. 

3



4



 

MINUTES 

REGULAR MEETING 

DATE:  May 14, 2019 

TIME:  7:00 p.m. 

PLACE: Council Chambers 

 

 

PAGE 1 OF 4 

PRESENT: 

 

- Acting Mayor Vern Gustafson  

Councillor John Fyke 

Councillor Colin Moss 

Councillor Gerald Wagner 

Catherine Allaway, Acting CAO 

Press:  Valley Voice 

Guests: Helen Davis, Daniel Hellyer, Dianne 

Shepherd, Abi Marsh, Katrina Sumrall, Rebecca 

Sargent, Wendy Harlock 

 

CALL TO ORDER: 

 

 Acting Mayor Gustafson called the meeting to order 

at 7:00 p.m.   

 

INTRODUCTION OF LATE ITEMS: 

 

- Nil 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA: 

 

  

RESOLUTION #175 

 

- Moved by Councillor Fyke and seconded that the 

agenda for the May 14, 2019 Regular Meeting be 

adopted as presented. 

CARRIED 

 

MINUTES: 

 

  

RESOLUTION #176 

 

- Moved by Councillor Moss and seconded that the 

Minutes of the April 23, 2019 Regular Meeting be 

adopted as read. 

CARRIED 

 

RESOLUTION #177 

 

- Moved by Councillor Wagner and seconded that the 

Minutes of the April 25, 2019 Committee of the 

Whole Meeting be adopted as read. 

CARRIED 

 

RESOLUTION #178 

 

- Moved by Councillor Moss and seconded that the 

Minutes of the May 3, 2019 Committee of the Whole 

Meeting be adopted as read. 

CARRIED 

 

RESOLUTION #179 

 

- Moved by Councillor Fyke and seconded that the 

Minutes of the May 10, 2019 Special Meeting be 

adopted as read. 

CARRIED 

5



Village of New Denver  Minutes – May 14, 2019 Regular Meeting 

 

PAGE 2 OF 4 

 

 

PETITIONS & DELEGATIONS: 

 

  

Organics Diversion Pilot Project Update 

(Healthy Community Society – Katrina 

Sumrall & Helen Davis) 

 

- Ms. Sumrall and Ms. Davis provided Council with an 

update on the project. 

PUBLIC QUESTIONS & COMMENTS: 

 

- Nil 

 

OLD BUSINESS: 

 

- Nil 

CORRESPONDENCE FOR 

INFORMATION: 

 

  

RESOLUTION #180 

 

- Moved by Councillor Wagner and seconded that the 

following correspondence be received for 

information: 

• Request to Participate in Canada Day Festivities 

(Silverton July 1st Committee - Vern Hartman, 

Treasurer) 

• Expanding Investment Opportunities (City of 

Burnaby - Mayor Mike Hurley) 

• May 5th Power Outage Update (BC Hydro - 

Mary Anne Coules, Stakeholder Engagement 

Advisor) 

• Building BC Funds (Hon. Selina Robinson, 

Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing) 

• May 9, 2019 Meeting Agenda (Slocan District 

Chamber of Commerce - Jessica Rayner, 

Manager) 

CARRIED 

 

STAFF REPORTS: 

 

  

RESOLUTION #181 

 

- Moved by Councillor Fyke and seconded that the 

following report be received for information: 

• Revenue & Expense Report - May 10, 2019 

CARRIED 

 

COUNCIL REPORTS: 

 

  

Verbal Reports - Councillor Moss reported on his attendance at the 

recent BC Rural Health Network meeting.   

 

Regional District of Central Kootenay 

 

- A meeting is scheduled for Thursday, May 16, 2019 

West Kootenay Boundary Regional 

Hospital District 

- A meeting is scheduled for June 16, 2019 

6



Village of New Denver  Minutes – May 14, 2019 Regular Meeting 

 

PAGE 3 OF 4 

 

 

Recreation Commission #6 

 

- A meeting is scheduled for May 29, 2019 

Economic Development Commission 

 

- A meeting is scheduled for June 25, 2019 

Rosebery Trails & Parklands 

Commission 

 

- A meeting is scheduled for May 16, 2019 

Treaty Advisory Committee 

 

- A meeting is scheduled for June 10, 2019 

Fire Department Committee 

 

- Nil 

NEW BUSINESS: 

 

  

RESOLUTION #182 

Request for Change of Scope - 2018 CBT 

CIP Funding (RDCK - Judy Madelung, 

Grants Coordinator) 

 

- Moved by Councillor Moss and seconded that the 

Village of New Denver advise the RDCK that they 

have no objections to the request for a change of 

scope for the New Denver Reading Centre’s project 

funded through the 2018 CBT Community Initiatives 

Program. 

CARRIED 

 

RESOLUTION #183 

Village of New Denver Five Year 

Financial Plan Bylaw No. 722, 2019 

 

- Moved by Councillor Fyke and seconded that Village 

of New Denver Five Year Financial Plan Bylaw No. 

722, 2019 be finally adopted. 

CARRIED 

 

RESOLUTION #184 

Village of New Denver Tax Rates Bylaw 

No. 723, 2019 

 

- Moved by Councillor Wagner and seconded that 

Village of New Denver Tax Rates Bylaw No. 723, 

2019 be finally adopted. 

CARRIED 

 

RESOLUTION #185 

KSCU Business Account 

 

- Moved by Councillor Fyke and seconded that the 

Village of New Denver open a Business Account – 

Business Online Banking at the Kootenay Savings 

Credit Union. 

CARRIED 

 

ADJOURNMENT: 

 

  

RESOLUTION #186 

 

- Moved by Councillor Wagner and seconded that the 

meeting be adjourned at 7:26 p.m.  

CARRIED 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

7



Village of New Denver  Minutes – May 14, 2019 Regular Meeting 

 

PAGE 4 OF 4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ACTING MAYOR   CORPORATE OFFICER 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8



2019‐05‐24

1

PROPOSAL
TO INSTALL AN

18-HOLE 
DISC GOLF COURSE 

IN NEW DENVER

Presented by the New Denver Disc Golf Club

WHY DISC GOLF 
IN NEW 
DENVER?

Growing popularity

High benefit-to-cost ratio

Low capital and maintenance costs

Environmentally sound

Played year-round in all climates

Inclusive activity

WHAT IS DISC 
GOLF?

WHO CAN PLAY 
DISC GOLF?

ALL AGES ALL SKILL 
LEVELS

ALL FITNESS 
LEVELS

ALL ABILITIES LOW ENTRY 
COST

RESIDENTS

Great activity for all ages

Low financial barrier

Accessible sport option for families, 
elderly, and people with disabilities

Can be played year-round, in all 
weather conditions

YOUTH

Used globally as a school 
activity

Scholarships and bursaries 
available for young players

Lots of possibilities for 
growth and development

9



2019‐05‐24

2

VISITORS

Enhance tourism options for 
those visiting New Denver

Create a destination for 
players seeking disc golf 
courses

HOW MUCH 
DOES IT COST 
TO PLAY?

Majority of all disc golf 
courses are public and free 
to play 

Disc golf discs sell for $8-
$15 each

Players only need one disc to 
get started

WHAT KIND OF 
CONSTRUCTION 
WOULD BE 
REQUIRED?

18-hole disc golf 
course

• Tee boxes
• Baskets
• Signage

Installation

TEE PAD 
INSTALLATION
One tee box per hole

– 5’ x 10’ wood framed boxes

– Filled with compacted natural aggregate

18 tee boxes in total

BASKET 
INSTALLATION
•Anchor pipes

•Pipe-mounted baskets

•Baskets and anchors are securely 
locked

SIGN 
INSTALLATION
•Tee signs 

•Rules and safety signs

•Course map

10



2019‐05‐24

3

Course
Fairways

Pathways

Trash

Tee boxes Aggregate levels & condition

Frame condition

Baskets No maintenance

MAINTENANCE 
REQUIRED FOR A 
DISC GOLF 
COURSE

LAND REQUIRED 
FOR A DISC 
GOLF COURSE

Rough rule of thumb: one acre per 
hole

Can utilize areas that are undesirable 
or unusable for other activities

Disc golf courses can co-exist 
amicably with other recreation uses

Course baskets and signs can be 
relocated as needed

BENEFITS OF A DISC GOLF COURSE TO THE NEW 
DENVER COMMUNITY

ENHANCE 
RECREATIONAL 
OPPORTUNITIES

EXPAND TOURISM 
OPPORTUNITIES

PROMOTE 
COMMUNITY SAFETY

SUPPORT 
CONSERVATION 

GOALS

RECREATION

Inexpensive recreation activity

Suitable for all abilities, ages, and 
skill levels

Recreational resource for the school

Healthy and challenging outlet for 
youth

TOURISM

High growth rate of disc 
golf courses in BC

Growing number of disc 
golf players in BC and 
beyond

SAFETY

Increase foot traffic

Discourage mischief

Open up unsafe or infrequently used 
areas

Promote decrease in vandalism and 
littering

11



2019‐05‐24

4

CONSERVATION

LOW 
DEVELOPMENTAL 

IMPACT

MINIMAL IMPACT 
ON SURROUNDING 

AREA

ENVIRONMENTAL 
STEWARDSHIP

PRESERVATION OF 
NATURAL SPACE

ECONOMICS

Entry-level course: about 
$400 per hole

Full-service community 
course: about $1,000 per 
hole

Volunteer labour can reduce 
overall costs

ECONOMIC 
COMPARISONS

• Disc golf course: 
$15,000-$20,000

• Basketball court: 
$35,000-$75,000

• Tennis court: 
$50,000-$80,000

Development 
costs

• Disc golf: 
72-108 (4-6 players per hole)

• Basketball: 
10 maximum

• Tennis: 
4 maximum

Players 
serviced at 

any one time

CURRENT 
INTEREST

New Ðenver Disc Golf Club: 41 members

LOCATION TBD RECAP

Fast-growing recreational opportunity

Inclusive sport for all ages and abilities

Affordable activity for all income levels

Small environmental footprint

Affordable development and maintenance

Supports tourism

12



2019‐05‐24

5

RECAP

QUESTIONS?
MORE INFO?

TYLER PERRAULT 250.309.9734 TYLER.PERRAULT@GMAIL.COM

13



The Corporation of the Village of New Denver 

P.O. Box 40, New Denver, BC V0G 1S0 • office@newdenver.ca 

PHONE (250) 358-2316 • FAX (250) 358-7251 

TO:  Mayor and Council 

FROM:  Corporate Officer 

SUBJECT:  Communications for Information 

DATE:  May 24, 2019  

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

That the following items of correspondence be received for information: 

• Invitation to Sam Steele Days - June 13-16, 2019 (City of Cranbrook – Mayor Lee Pratt) 

• BC Rural Dividend program - 6th Intake 

• “One River: Ethics Matter” International Conference (Selkirk College – Allison Lutz, 

Geography/Hydrology Instructor) 

 

14



15



BC Rural Dividend program announces sixth intake

NEWS RELEASE

Media Relations
Ministry of Forests, Lands, 
Natural Resource Operations and Rural 
Development
250 356-7506

Contact:

For Immediate Release
2019FLNR0136-000926
May 10, 2019

VICTORIA Local governments, Indigenous communities and organizations, as well as not-for-
profit organizations are eligible and encouraged to apply for funding in the sixth intake of the 
BC Rural Dividend program.

Applications will be accepted June 15 to midnight (Pacific time) Aug. 15, 2019. This is the only 
application window for 2019-20.

Applications to the Rural Dividend can be submitted to the program s three funding streams.

The project development stream provides up to $10,000 to help communities undertake 
preliminary work, such as feasibility assessments and business cases, to develop strong 
future projects.
The single applicant stream provides up to $100,000 to support the implementation of 
community-driven economic development and diversification projects.
The partnerships funding stream provides up to $500,000 to support projects that will be 
delivered with at least one eligible partner.

The program also includes a special circumstances provision to help communities respond to 
significant economic disruption.

Up to $25 million is available for 2019-20. All projects are assessed based on the information 
provided in the application and budget form, including a project s feasibility and its direct 
impact on economic development in the community.

Projects must take place in, or directly benefit, a community with a population of 25,000 to be 
eligible for funding.

Learn More:

The sixth intake program guide and detailed instructions on how to apply are available now on 
the BC Rural Dividend website: www.gov.bc.ca/ruraldividend  

Ministry of Forests, Lands, Natural Resource Operations 
and Rural Development

16

http://www.gov.bc.ca/ruraldividend


1

Catherine Allaway

From: Allison Lutz <ALutz@selkirk.ca>
Sent: May 13, 2019 2:06 PM
To: castlegar@castlegar.ca; admin@kaslo.ca; nelsoncouncil@nelson.ca; office@newdenver.ca; 

admin@revelstoke.ca; cityhall@rossland.ca; cao@salmo.ca; administration@silverton.ca; info@trail.ca; 
info@village.fruitvale.bc.ca; info@villageofslocan.ca

Subject: “One River: Ethics Matter” May 30-31, Castlegar

“One River: Ethics Matter” International Conference 

You Are Invited  

May 30‐31, 2019, Selkirk College, Castlegar, B.C. Canada 

Selkirk College, Castlegar, and Spokane Community College, Spokane are pleased to co‐host “One River, Ethics 
Matter”, a two‐day 6th annual international ethics conference on the past and future of the Columbia River.  

The conference series is coordinated by the Ethics and Treaty Project (https://www.celp.org/ethics‐treaty‐
project/) with the goal of promoting principles of stewardship and social justice in modernizing the Columbia 
River Treaty, which governs water and dam management on the Columbia River. The Columbia River Pastoral 
Letter (http://www.inee.mu.edu/documents/30columbiariverwatershed_000.pdf), Pope Francis’ encyclical, 
Laudato Si: On Care for our Common Home, and tools used by hospital ethics consultation services provide a 
framework for the conference series. The conference will engage people across the Basin in respectful dialogue 
about the past, present, and future of a river system affected by climate change, in particular youth and 
Indigenous communities. 

The first day of the conference will consist of field excursions and discussion with special attention to the voice of 
youth and the effect of Treaty negotiations on their future. The second day will examine the moral dimensions of 
the dam‐building era with a focus on tribes (U.S.) and First Nations (Canada), rivers and life that depends on 
rivers, and compelling need to add ecosystem‐based function as a primary purpose of the Columbia River Treaty 
during Treaty negotiations. focus on the upper reaches of the Columbia River 

Please share conference information and the attached poster with your organization members and networks. For 
more information on the conference, the project, the sponsors and previous conferences please see 
https://www.celp.org/ethics‐castlegar/ 

The link to register can be found at http://selkirk.ca/event/one‐river‐ethics‐matter . The conference is free and 
open to the public. 

If you have questions please contact conference coordinators Jennie Barron (jbarron@selkirk.ca), Rev. W. 
Thomas Soeldner (waltsoe@allmail.net), or John Osborn (john@waterplanet.ws).  

Sincerely, 

 
 
   
ALLISON LUTZ 
Geography/Hydrology Instructor 
School of University Arts and Sciences/School of Environment and Geomatics 
Selkirk College, West Kootenay & Boundary Region 

17



The Corporation of the Village of New Denver 

P.O. Box 40, New Denver, BC V0G 1S0 • office@newdenver.ca 

PHONE (250) 358-2316 • FAX (250) 358-7251 

TO:  Mayor and Council 

FROM:  Corporate Officer 

SUBJECT:  Reports for Information 

DATE:  May 24, 2019  

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

That the following reports be received for information: 

• Kootenay Cannabis Symposium Report (RDCK - Ron LeBlanc, Slocan Valley Economic 

Development Coordinator) 

  

18



 

         Kootenay Cannabis Symposium - Report, reflections and summary 

 
On October 19th 2018, Cannabis was legalized in Canada. This landmark decision created a new era for a 
plant that has spent the last 95 years in prohibition. Over the last 40 years, communities around BC developed 
an economy and culture intrinsic to cannabis. In light of the new legal framework, concern is prevalent 
regarding the livelihood of individuals, families and communities.   
 
In response to these concerns the Kootenay United Cannabis Association was formed, ‘To unite, protect, and 
advocate for the cannabis industry within the Kootenay region of British Columbia by supporting the right to a 
fair and reasonable transition into the legal market. Ensuring economic security and prosperity for our region 
and continued access to a growing market for our products.’   
 

On April 11th, 2019, the Kootenay United Cannabis Association (KUCA) organized and hosted the Kootenay 
Cannabis Symposium gathering over 200 stakeholders at the Prestige Lakeside Inn, in Nelson, BC, to talk 
about the barriers and challenges of transitioning into the legal cannabis industry, and to workshop potential 
solutions. The symposium was comprised of members from the local industry, delegates from various levels of 
government, academics and non-governmental organizations.  Although attendance was mostly regional, 
some participants came from across the country to attend the event. 
  
This event represented the first occasion that the cannabis community assembled to discuss how it wanted to 
address the impacts/opportunities presented by cannabis legalization.  The current legalization framework is 
posing drastic consequences to the socio economic wellbeing of rural communities in BC. It is imperative that 
the perspectives of all the stakeholders, particularly those held by members of the preexisting cannabis 
industry, be considered at both federal and provincial levels.   

 
Support and Attendance 

 
Participation in the event was considered substantial with two thirds of the event attended by local cultivators 
and processors.  Although it is important to note that the most vulnerable populations from the industry were 
under-represented.  This is a cross-section of the community that sees the least hope or simply does not have 
the immediate capacity to meet compliance requirements.  
  
In attendance was Health Canada’s Joanne Garrah, Director of Licensing and Security, Controlled Substances 
and Cannabis Branch. She presented the latest update from Health Canada.  She was able to engage directly 
with a number of participants after her presentation and is keen to receive the report of findings that will come 

19



from the event. It was a wonderful opportunity to have such a well-respected representative from Health 
Canada in the room as the lead federal department managing the Cannabis file. 
  
The BC Cannabis Legalization and Regulation Secretariat (Ministry of Public Safety and Solicitor General) was 
represented by Mary Shaw, Executive Lead, and Wendy Norris, Senior Policy Manager. Ms. Shaw presented 
the latest update from their department. Together they participated in the day’s agenda and were able to hear 
firsthand about barriers and solutions from participants. The Cannabis Secretariat is in the midst of a 
consultation process that will be informed by the content of the symposium.    
  
Regional Rural Development Managers Richard Topeczer, Gerri Brightwell and Larry Olson from BC FLNRD 
Ministry were enlisted to help facilitate break-out sessions. In addition to their contribution to the event, they 
received the benefit of bearing witness to the scale and inner workings of the local industry. This experience 
informs them about what sector development work can be done to support the industry in transition. 
  
The event was moderated by Brittny Anderson, from Nelson City Council and co-founder of the Cannabis 
Conservancy. Ron LeBlanc (Slocan Valley Economic Development Partnership/RDCK) and Meeri Durrand 
(RDCK Planning Department), participated as presenters and facilitators. Ms. Durand also participated in the 
afternoon panel discussion.  
Others in attendance included Walter Popoff (RDCK Director, Area H), Jessica Lunn (Mayor of Slocan) Tom 
Zeleznik (Mayor of Nakusp) and Colin Moss (New Denver Town Councilor).  
 
It was a mutually beneficial event in that local residents and industry members witnessed the engagement and 
felt the support of their local government representatives.  While elected officials got an inside look into this 
sector, along with the opportunities and threats that hinge upon how the region’s cannabis industry moves 
forward. 
  
The symposium was supported and attended by Community Futures, Nelson and District Chamber of 
Commerce and Selkirk College’s Community Education and Workforce Training.  Tracey Harvey from Selkirk 
College and the University of Guelph was an active co-organizer, presenter and facilitator of the day. Her PhD 
academic research is focused on examining how to effectively transition to the new rural cannabis economy.  
Abra Brynne of The Food Policy Council was an active advisor, facilitator and hostess of the afternoon panel 
discussion entitled ‘Moving Forward’.  Her years of researching and reporting on food policy was a valuable 
asset to the day, giving tangible references to case studies in which we could draw similarities from.  
 
Presentations 
 
The schedule for the day included informative presentations followed by facilitated workshops. 
 
Ron LeBlanc, the Slocan Valley Economic Development Coordinator, offered a summary of his report entitled 
‘Slocan Valley Cannabis Synopsis - The Business of Transition’ which assesses the state of the industry and 
the potential impacts of legalization in the Slocan Valley. His anecdotal analysis suggests that many of the 
local cultivators will be prohibited from transitioning within the current framework.  
Ron’s leadership shows courage in bringing these concerns to the awareness of government.   
 
Paul Kelly from Community Futures Central Kootenay (CFCK) spoke about the CFCK’s commitment to 
transitioning industry and noted the significant effect that dollars generated by the cannabis community have 
had in creating a robust Kootenay economy. 
He touched on the free “Cannabis Business Planning “101” class they’ve been running in conjunction with the 
RDCK.  Their aim is to teach potential market entrants some basics around zoning and development permits, 

20



Health Canada applications, basic legal business operations (Cash flow planning, GST, PST, Excise tax, BC 
employment standards, bookkeeping and payroll requirements), as this will be new to many transitioning 
growers.  
        He also outlined some of the additional supports CFCK is here to provide – Business loans, community 
business counselling, business training classes, and WorkBC’s Self-Employment Program. 
 
Tracey Harvey from Selkirk College and the University of Guelph offered an invaluable contribution to the day’s 
content.  She outlined salient points on the risks of not intentionally transitioning rural, historically producing 
cannabis economies and the need for genuine stakeholder participation during such a complex process that 
can deeply affect a mostly hidden, and underrepresented group. Highlighting how rural cannabis stakeholders 
have not been heard or understood during federal and provincial policy formulation and how these 
stakeholders are imperative to involve in partnership for equitable policy. She also discussed proven 
transitional economic strategies, which the Kootenay region is particularly well suited because of the top shelf 
quality craft cannabis that comes from this region, as well as the extensive experiential knowledge and strong 
social capital. Her final recommendation, to collaborate as a region to develop a cannabis cluster of economic 
innovation and knowledge generation is a functional strategy that should be driven by stakeholders, including 
industry.  
 
David Robinson, board member of the BC Craft Cannabis Association has long standing relationships with 
many stakeholders in the cannabis industry. His garden store Pacific Northwest has been the main supplier for 
many in the industry. Known as the Garden Sage, David has been guiding people regarding cultivation 
practices for many years.  David Robinson is a face that everyone in the local industry knows and trusts after 
years of business together.  
He presented his thoughts on the importance of transitioning this industry and provided an estimate that 
25,000 kilograms of high quality product is produced a year in this region. His optimistic vision is built upon 
twenty years of relationships with his customers, knowing that the Kootenay region holds the most knowledge 
and experience to produce the highest quality product. Given the proper tools and support from all levels of 
government he is assured that the Kootenay region will thrive. 
     
Josh and Kelly Dunn of Dragonfly Earth Medicine and the Pure Collective are known internationally in the 
industry. They advocate for the plant and promote the case for growing regenerative cannabis on small farms. 
With a worldwide collective of Peer Certified farmers they have an informed perspective on the consequences 
of legalization in various regions across North America. Though they warn of a painful transition as the global 
industry opens up, they assert that sun grown, sustainable cannabis and hemp, collective cooperation and 
value added products will establish the most resilient path forward.    
 
The Common Challenges and Barriers 
 
The morning workshops were designed to identify the barriers faced by participants who are transitioning to the 
legal cannabis market. These sessions were developed to make room for a wide diversity of perspectives 
including the voices of cultivators and processors in their various capacities, local organizations, government 
representatives, academics, retailers and ancillary businesses.   
 
By allowing participants to express their concerns and remain nameless, insight was gained regarding how 
regulations are impacting individuals on a personal level. This is significant.  As Ron LeBlanc points out, there 
are various levels of capacity to transitioning. The experiential feedback demonstrates how policy is, and isn’t, 
working and how different groups are affected and impacted. 
 

21



Participants were invited to fill in personal worksheets. Followed by a collective sharing process that divided 
their points into four categories:  Federal Barriers, Provincial Barriers, Local Government Barriers, Human 
Resources/Business/Finance Included here is a distilled and interpreted selection of the workshop sheets. 
                               
                                                Barriers/Challenges to transitioning 

 
 

Federal 

● Lack of clear and accessible licensing information 
○ Around application process: compliance, 

building requirements, SOP’s. 
● Prohibitive licensing cost and taxation schemes for 

small entrepreneurs 
○ High fees, taxes, compliance costs, cost of 

new builds and testing. 
○ Taxation is not reasonable for micros which 

should be based on potential output for year. 
○ The disconnect between the various levels 

of government adds a significant amount of 
confusion and complexity creating chaos at 
the local level in rural areas  

● Unrealistic canopy size for micro license class 
○ Both for indoor and outdoor  

● Ineffective microbial testing 
○ Plate cultures add a significant amount of 

time to the process; threshold levels 
unrealistic and impedes organic production 

● No transition plan for pre-existing entrepreneurs 
○ With no plan to transition existing economy, 

pre-existing facilities have to shut down, and 
face a lack of funding opportunities required 
for new-builds and land purchase/lease. 

○ Pre-existing small farmers do not have 
capacity to transition and are left with no 
viable option to transition.   

○ Pre-existing small farmers have no support 
around protecting their valuable genetics in 
the legal landscape 

● Marketing and branding restrictions 
○ Do not allow for differentiation of small craft 

and artisan producers. 
● Restrictive hemp regulations 

○ Hemp that is under the same licensing as 
cannabis will debilitate Canada’s 
competitiveness on world market (ie with lost 
opportunities), as well due to limited strains 
allowed. 

 

 
 
 

 
Provincial 

●  
Restrictive ALR regulations 

Non-Farm use variance Provincial 

○ in ALR creates a series of issues (see 
appendix)  

○ It is challenging to engage the ALC  
● Lack of Provincial support for small business 

development 
○ Call for price control measures to 

effectively compete with the illicit market 
and create certainty around market value 

○ Address retail concerns and slow adoption 
of federal regulations creating expensive 
bottlenecks for the small entrepreneur as 
they remain in limbo 

○ Address poor communication between 
federal government and the province to 
ensure clarity on regulations 

○ Address lack of information and ability to 
answer questions about compliance 
issues, ie building science 

● Centralized distribution issues 
○ Distribution through LDB is 

environmentally unsustainable, and 
inequitable economically, and logistically 
for small entrepreneurs 

○ Small entrepreneurs require farmgate 

and options for online sales. 

  

22



 

Local Government 

 

● Limited local control and capacity:  
○ Local government is tasked with 

addressing the roll-out of the legal 
cannabis industry, but with limited tools, 
due to the overarching and restrictive 
legislation of senior governments.  

○ Results in an inability for locally derived, 
place-based solutions most appropriate for 
unique rural places 

● Revenue sharing between province and local 
governments remains undetermined.  

○ This needs to be addressed as soon as 
possible to increase incentive and reason 
to develop local policy for sector 
development including issues of water and 
land rights and access. 

● Missing clarification regarding justice, equity 
programs and level of enforcement for transitioning 
areas 

○ No accommodation of pre-existing industry 
participants 

○ Address the trust issues of those who are 
the most vulnerable because of potential 
exposure of themselves and their families 

○ Amnesty is required to create a more 
participatory environment 

 

HR/Business/Finance 

 

● Training and educational challenges 
○ Need for adequate training in Health 

Canada procedures for staff (Master 
Growers, etc.) 

○ Provide support to transition work 
force, acquire WCB, address CRA 
requirements and standard labor 
procedures  

○ Address lack of business skills & 
training 

● Micro license business viability concerns 
○ Address capacity limitations through 

application support and by providing 
access to capital 

○ Support issue of seasonality of outdoor 
production and staff availability 

○ Revisit testing standards and risk of 
failures  

○ Eliminate predatory consultancy costs 
farmers face because of the arduous 
application process by providing 
support for application  

○ Address inequitable access to business 
advice and supply agreement 
consultation  

○ Address significant CRA requirements 
that are prohibitive for a small business 

○ Help with challenges around finding 
legitimate investors and/or funding, 
grants (like other sectors)  

 

 

Data Crunch 

 

22 tables took part in the facilitated workshops to identify barriers and challenges. With the intention of 
removing repetitive comments and streamlining the categories, a committed team of data processors compiled 
and summarized the information over lunch. As the symposium reconvened we were able to buy time for the 
team to complete their process with the sharing of some local grassroots cannabis culture poetry. Though not 
as timely as we had imagined, the data was processed and Tracey Harvey represented the findings to the 
larger group.  A link to photographs of the original work sheets have been posted along with this report on our 
website. 

 
23



 
Solutions Work shopping - 

 
The data processed from the first session identified an overwhelming amount of feedback concerning 
the Federal Regulations. We felt it necessary to adapt the second workshop to provide ample 
opportunity to share ideas and solutions regarding federal issues.  
 
Once again, individual worksheets were geared towards identifying personal perspectives. Asking 
participants to reflect on key barriers and suggest potential solutions to address them. The room was 
divided into groups which collectively compiled solutions and ideas in response to identified barriers. 
Participants were also given time to offer feedback solutions on other categories (provincial, local etc) 
below is a distilling of the top issues from each category.   
The format for these discussions, although limited, supplied a sampling of ideas.  These have been 
edited to a degree though some may remain vague in explanation.  This Report will seek to develop 
upon a selection of the last section of the report.  .   
 
The collective worksheets on barriers/challenges and solutions can be found in the attached appendix 
or is available for download on the website under KUCA Symposium Report   
 

 

                                                            

 

 

 

                                                            Federal Regulations 

 
Barriers Solutions/Ideas/Suggestions 

 

 

● Lack of clear accessible licensing 

       information 

● Establish a Health Canada intake process to 

clear up any questions on application elements 

and process  

● Increase dedicated cannabis representatives 

who can be contacted for timely assistance to 

questions 

● Create accessible information packages  

● Streamline process to be more timely 

● Hire more staff to process questions and 

applications 

● Provide federal building standards and SOP 
examples to follow. 

 

 

 

24

https://photos.google.com/share/AF1QipO1MahoUMc-olHUBkz9jZ1-xqm4YaAatWujDZ7CJaArX0HhDZbRurZUX-aTkJvcHQ?key=cm1wVnpINnpNVjRUbTh6Y1dGb3B1M3lTNU9mRFp3


 
 

● Prohibitive licensing cost and taxation schemes 
for small entrepreneurs 

● Suggestion to implement a smaller license class 

to address the needs of smaller cultivators  

● Allow for stacked micro licensing: that includes 

nursery, cultivating and processing operations for 

entrepreneurs and artisans to maintain boutique 

advantage, opportunities to support tourism and 

farmgate sales.  

● Examine small farm livestock licensing for 

application to the cannabis industry 

● Suggest Health Canada commits to a goal to 

achieving a certain number of licensed micros by 

end of 2019  

● Suggest a quota for micro system, 

 
 

● Unrealistic canopy size for micro license class 

 

● Suggestion to Increase canopy size for indoors to 
double, and outdoors to quadrupled, to support a 
viable business which is prone to crop failure, 
and when sungrown, limited to one crop per 
year. 

 
 

● Ineffective microbial testing 
● GPCR tests more effective at identifying specific 

pathogens, quicker turnaround times and more 

flexible for allowing beneficial microbes (more 

suitable for organics) 

● Consult smaller producers as to what works for 

them 

● Support for more localized labs 

● Differentiate between pathogenic and non-

pathogenic microbes 

● Allow for non-pathogenic microbes 

 
 
 

● No transition plan for pre-existing entrepreneurs 

● Support a staged transition for existing ACMPR 

holders so they can realistically transition over a 

number of years.   

● Focus on testing compliance so those 

transitioning can get product to market and 

meet supply demand and pay taxes.   

● Recommend an amnesty period for those that 

are in transition or retraining to encourage 

previous participants to transition 

● Consider equity program like that is employed by  
The City of Sacramento CA which prioritizes 
previous industry and charges zero applications 
fees.        

  
 

 
25



 
● Restrictive hemp regulations ● Allow for more strain diversity. 

● Remove hemp licensing from same classification 

as Cannabis, or make security and licensing 

process simpler to open the various low risk 

benefits the plant can bring to small farmers.   

● Suggest the Ministry of Agriculture handles the           
cannabis program to allow  for access to existing 
programs. 

 
 

● Branding and Marketing is too restrictive 
● Some allowance to differentiate for micros 

● Allow for smaller brands (micros) to tell story 

● Certification branding (regenerative, organic, 

micro?) 

  

  

                        

Provincial Regulations 

 

Barriers Solutions/Ideas/Suggestions 

 
 
            

● Restrictive ALR regulations 

● Allow for more reasonable process in determining ALR 

land use for cannabis production.  Suggestion 

for indoor cannabis production on ALR to 

perhaps be based on land quality, local 

agricultural economy, and grandfathering 

historical sites 

● Suggest more greenhouse design options with 

open floor or permeable floor with perimeter 

foundations for more high technology options 

that can produce multiple crops per year 

● Advocate for better response times and more 
responsive relationships with ALC. 

 
   

● Centralized distribution issues 
● Allow for localized distribution 

● Create regional testing facilities, then allow 

direct sales to outlets or drop shipping costs 

● Farmgate and online sales for micro 
entrepreneurs. Examine meat sales licenses for 
small farms as a potential model to emulate 
which ensures safety and traceability. 

26



 

 
 

● Lack of Provincial support for small business     
development/Price controls/Retail concerns 
and bottlenecks 

● Suggestion to move the cannabis portfolio into 

Ministry of Agriculture or Ministry of Jobs, 

Trade, Technology 

● Advocate for more local control over micro-

licensing in BC because of its pre-legalization 

importance to provincial economy and society 

● Create a provincial task force to address 
federal licensing and industry concerns for 
small entrepreneurs.  

 
 

● Need for transparent and honest education 

 

● Provide an education program that supports 

communities to transition.   

● Raise awareness of economic importance of 

industry  

● Educate to remove traditional stigmas and create 
a more balanced display of health risks/benefits. 

 

Local Government 

 

                               Barriers      Solutions/Ideas/suggestions 

 
 

● Limited local control and capacity:  

○ Local government is tasked with 

addressing the roll-out of the legal 

cannabis industry, but with limited tools, 

due to the overarching and restrictive 

legislation of senior governments.  

○ Results in an ability for locally derived, 

place-based solutions most appropriate 

for unique rural places. 

● Local government agencies need to be supported 

in making decisions that promote respectful and 

inclusive industry development that support the 

health and well-being of their communities 

● Encourage and support collaboration with other 

local governments 

● Advocate to the provincial government to create 

guidelines for micro licenses with appropriate 

zoning recommendations 

● Grandfather existing operations  

● Local government should play a supportive role 

in dialogues between local applicants and ALC 

for a more localized discernment of land use 

● Consider utilizing existing models of micro-

brewery and winery tourism to apply to this 

sector 

● Permit consumption lounges further creating 

local and small town opportunities 

● Encourage regional government involvement in 
supportive roles for business development and 
education. 

27



  

● Revenue sharing between province and local 

governments remains undetermined. 

● This needs to be addressed as soon as possible to 

increase incentive and reason to develop local 

policy and place specific sector development as 

well address water and land rights and access.   

           

● Establish revenue share of excise tax to support 

local governments that are interested in 

developing a cannabis industry 

● Support local government investment through 

R&D, tourism, grants for community based 

projects (to encourage involvement and 

investment for long term success) 

 
 
 

● Missing clarification regarding justice, equity 
programs and level of enforcement for 
transitioning areas 

● Explicitly accommodate pre-existing industry 

participants 

● Address trust issues of those who are the most 

vulnerable because of potential exposure of 

themselves and their families 

● Amnesty is required to create a more 

participatory environment 

● Establish guidelines  for how municipalities can 

regulate the industry based on user experience 

and safety, rather than enforcement    

● Support a staged transitional period for pre-

existing industry participants 

● Explicitly protect those that are most 

dependent and vulnerable during this 

transition (families, single parents, elders) 

 
      

Human Resources/ Business/ Finance 

 

Barriers               Solutions/Ideas/Suggestions 

● Training and educational challenges 

○ Need for adequate training in Health 

Canada procedures for staff (Master 

Growers, etc...) 

○ Address lack of business skills & training 

○ Provide support to transition work force, 

acquire WCB, and address CRA 

requirement’s and standard labor 

procedures. 

 

● Create programs to support industry in acquiring 

necessary training  

● Create a (local) Selkirk College Cannabis Facility 

○ eg. To train QA’s to HC requirements 

● Create, distribute and share resources as related 

to QA staff, SOP’s and GPP’s 

● Consider creating a hub to manage shared 

resources and services like transport services, 

and staff sharing  

● Offer Business Training 101 

 

 

28



 

 Micro license business viability concerns 

○ Address capacity limitations by providing 

access to capital and help finding 

legitimate investors and/or funding, 

grants (like other sectors)  

○ Revisit testing standards to help reduce 

risk of failures  

○ Eliminate predatory consultancy costs by 

providing support for applications  

○ Address inequitable access to business 

advice and supply agreement 

consultation  

○ Address significant CRA requirements 

that are prohibitive for a small business 

○ Overcome restrictions around branding 

○ Support issue of seasonality of outdoor 

production and staff availability 

 

 

 Advocate for single stacked license that entails 

nursery, cultivation and processing for micro 

license applicants 

● Promote farmgate sales, and drop 

shipping/distribution requirements and costs for 

micro license applicants 

● Support tourism as value-added growth to 

businesses 

● Work collaboratively and regionally to create a 

regional brand 

● Partner with existing local certifications 

● Create and promote regional appellations such as 

common with wine 

● Advocate for different supply management 

structure for micro’s who cannot absorb the  

same degree of risk as corporate large LP’s 

● Application guides must be made available to 

help avoid consulting fees 

● Wave fee for first year and implement service 

standards - bill in arrears 

● Focus on production practices, localized testing, 

and traceability of product by allowing direct 

sales system for micro’s (which reduces major 

public safety concerns experienced by large 

centralized operations) 

● Promote local business models that support 

healthy wages to sustain living standards 

● Support for the creation of Co-Ops (producer and 

worker-owned), collectives and clusters of 

businesses. 

● Consider unionization 
● Consider government sanctions on large 

corporations prohibiting import deals and giving 
Canadians at least a 5 year head start in the 
cannabis business 
 

 

  

 

Interpreting the data 
 
A significant amount of common ground was shared during the event, yet the primary intent of the day was to 
address the hurdles being experienced by the Micro license applicants, and/or those within the pre-existing 
cannabis economy wanting to transition to the legal market. Due to the prevalent nature and important 

29



community structure involving families, the success of a transition for these smaller cultivators is imperative to 
the well-being of the regional economy. There is a focus on those attempting the application process, but we 
will also be addressing the perspectives of those that are not seeing a path to transitioning.  The following 
paragraphs will seek to develop and examine some of the key content from the barrier and solutions data, yet it 
should be noted that this content is interpreted by KUCA.   
 
Again, the raw worksheets can be accessed through the KUCA website for reference.       

 
Policy does not support Rural B.C. Communities  

 

the general feedback from our work shopping suggests that the majority of the challenges come from the 
Federal Regulations.  Overwhelmingly the data shows a lack of consideration on the part of policy makers of 
the existing cannabis economy. 
We are faced with federal policy that is unrealistic for most to navigate.  From the perspective of policy 
analysts, the regulations are not designed with the goal of having small farmers succeed.  The policies are 
clearly written for corporate entities and did not take into account the grassroots or historic rural communities 
that rely on the cannabis economy.  Indeed, rural communities historically were not adequately consulted with 
respect to developing policy relevant to rural hinterlands. 
As it stands the provinces can tweak retail and distribution to suit their jurisdictions.  A question that arises is 
why provinces cannot deal with cultivation as it suits their jurisdictions, at least in the case of micro-licenses.  
Each province has it its own differences with the value and meaning of the industry in the pre-legalization era.  
For rural BC, this industry has been important to its well-being for the past 40 years.       
The current policy framework allows only a small number of pre-existing operators to transition into the new 
legalized cannabis economy.  The rest will be left facing grave consequences of the loss of their livelihood.  
 

Caught in the Illicit Market 
 
While some cultivators do not intend to transition for various reasons, it is important to note that in face of this 
policy most are left with no choice as they are under resourced with time, capital and/or knowledge to make the 
transition.  Stonewalled and pigeonholed, those that are most vulnerable; families, single parents, and older 
generations, are the least likely to make the transition. Many communities throughout BC rely on this economy.  
When forestry sectors crashed in the late 80’s, cannabis cultivation became a safety net for rural areas 
keeping these communities alive. There are few other options for employment in many rural regions where the 
cannabis industry filled that need.   
 
With the most vulnerable populations remaining in the black market, and their eventual exposure to impending 
enforcement, it is imperative for the three levels of government to consider these socio economic impacts in 
such communities. In order to make the transition fair and equitable for those that have historically relied upon 
cannabis cultivation and the accompanying culture, it is crucial to review cannabis policy and its limitations 
affecting this largely misunderstood population. 
 
A concern voiced in the work shopping is the risk of ‘sticking one’s head out’ and potentially jeopardizing 
livelihood. Although some of these individuals want to produce product for the legal market, none are currently 
offered a reasonable option for moving forward.   
 
 

 

 

30



 

No Transition Plan, No Reasonable Options    
 
Unfortunately, a lack of consultation with rural industry participants led to unreasonable policy for small farmers 
that currently means licensing is largely unattainable. To intentionally transition the industry, staged timelines 
for adoption and amnesty of transition into CRA’s database are needed.  Testing outcomes, rather than 
building standards, could have been the starting point for Micro license applicants. Additionally, timelines for 
transition could have been laid out, which allowed applicants to meet certain requirements by certain dates.  
This would provide ACMPR license holders the opportunity to produce product that could be sold on the legal 
marketplace if it passed testing.  A focus on product quality, and methods of production would have determined 
its outcomes.  Lessons can be applied from Sacramento California, where a previous illicit industry is 
intentionally being transitioned. Sacramento is prioritizing previous industry participants, or pre-existing license 
holders, giving them top priority on the license application process, no application fees, and a secure allotment 
of dedicated applications for this portion of the industry.    
 
In comparison, one can look to the meat policy implemented across Canada in 2007.  Similarly, small farmers 
were not consulted.  Overnight a community of small farmers became criminals for processing their farm raised 
livestock themselves and selling it to their neighbors.  While the reverse is true for cannabis regarding the law, 
the policy is having a similar effect on the communities’ socio-economic wellbeing.  In time a class licensing 
system was put in place for livestock production, but the damage was already done.  It may seem worthwhile 
to consider this case in comparison, and implement a similar system.  The Class E, C and D licensing system 
of livestock production does not transpose exactly, but it could inform policy regarding cannabis law.  Small 
farms need permission to produce products and sell directly to customers and regulation standards need to 
focus on quality control and traceability rather than excessive testing and incompatible distribution models.  
 
Reconsider Canopy Sizes        
 
The prescribed canopy sizes for micro licenses are not considered economically viable for many.  Farmers 
request the sanctioned indoor canopy size to be doubled at the current limit, and the outdoor quadrupled. The 
reason for the larger increase for outdoor production is because outdoor cultivation produces only one crop per 
annum and many of the licensing fees are still substantial. Ideas for an alternative ‘mini’ micro license have 
also been suggested. This idea includes the limitation of production size while broadening the license to a 
stacked or an all in one license ie. Nursery, cultivation, production. This mini-micro option would allow more 
flexibility for marketing, cannabis tourism and bud & breakfast integration.  It could be a more accessible model 
for many smaller cultivators.  Again, referral could be made to the class licensing system of livestock 
production which aims to meet the various needs of different scales of operations in rural areas.   
 
Testing  

 
From the perspective of the grassroots and the general micro applicant attempting to meet compliance 
standards within the legal framework, the regulations around quality assurance and testing is prohibitive.  The 
methodologies for the larger scale producers do not meet the needs of the micro licenses.  Though quality 
control is recognized as an important issue, the policy approach to this topic is reminiscent again of what 
happened to small farms around meat production in 2007.  We suggest a focus on environmental controls, 
good practices and traceability (direct sales records) for the smaller cultivators and producers rather than 
rigorous sterility and unrealistic standards currently being mandated. This is a major issue from a small 
business perspective.  Furthermore, small producers will likely have to rely on irradiation as microbial 
parameters are unrealistic. 

31



As was referred to in the solutions work shopping, a more specific form of testing needs to be adopted.  In 
various states in the US, GPCR (quantitative Polymerase Chain Reaction) is a more specific way to test and 
even more accurate when looking for particular pathogens.  This method is also significantly quicker.   
The current regulations have very low tolerance for any microbes.  While cannabis has been historically 
consumed outside of this degree of scrutinization, with proper protocols in place it should be highly feasible to 
produce a product that is ‘safe’ to consume.  It was voiced as a concern by many that these limitations 
annihilate the possibility of truly organic standards.  Organic production utilizes many beneficial microbes to 
promote healthy plant growth and to keep harmful ones away.    
 
Environmental Concerns and wasteful use of resources 
 
The content of this report is largely focused on the barriers to transitioning, yet it must be stated that a large 
amount of feedback was offered around the potential environmental impacts resulting from the regulations at 
all levels.  From the excessive packaging mandated by the federal government, to the central distribution 
model of the provincial system that relies on unnecessary transport of all product to one location.  More 
nuanced are the ecological costs implicit with zoning, ALR, and finance.  The reasoning for this lies in a few 
factors.  The first being the need to finance with clean capital.  As the preexisting industry has to find ways to 
create clean paths financially, many are left having to abandon suitable, existing farm buildings since there is 
often no traceability back to clean funds used for their construction.  Zoning setbacks and ALR regulations also 
create a similar situation in which cultivators have to drop existing structures and build a new or not at all.  This 
is a massive and wasteful barrier implicit of restrictive bureaucracy.  From both an economic and ecological 
perspective, a case could have been made for ‘grandfathering’ in preexisting operations (ACMPR, MMAR 
license holders)  
 
The Global Context  
 
The global marketplace for Cannabis is said to be valued between 130 to 200 billion dollars.  As the second 
country in the world to federally legalize cannabis, Canada is well positioned to be a leader in this industry.  
While it is an ever-changing marketplace, it would seem as if there would be plenty of room to promote and 
support the pre-existing industry to mobilize and be a part of this opportunity.  Removing the Cannabis portfolio 
from Health Canada’s control could open up opportunities for this industry on the global platform.   Many 
participants in the workshops expressed the wish for this file to be shifted to the Ministry of Agriculture, to 
federally leverage existing programs to support activities of the industry.    
 
For the Kootenays and many other rural areas in British Columbia the international and historical reputation for 
cannabis culture is renowned.  The opportunity that exists for these rural regions should be supported.  If this 
unique culture is not backed for success, another economic opportunity will pass us by around cannabis 
tourism.  When one looks at wine tourism throughout BC over the last 15 years we can only begin to imagine 
what this could mean for economic growth in rural regions of our province as people come to explore the 
cannabis culture, farms, and history. 
 
Moving Forward? 

 
The energy generated at the symposium was lively, productive and inspiring. The experience of collectively 
identifying and unifying around issues in the changing industry, built upon participants’ common ground. The 
importance of the momentum that came from this day and its ripple effects cannot be overstated.  Participants 
left with a sense of hope, encouraged by the significant levels of shared experience and the support of the 
surrounding community.  While the intangible aspect of the connections made and the information shared 
cannot be quantified, grassroots events like these give communities an opportunity to start mobilizing and 

32



building capacity. This is something the corporate world has had a great head start on. The KUCA witnessed a 
tremendous value in this process and hopes to find the support to initiate events like these again, both locally 
and provincially.  The day resulted in showing several identifiable initiatives that are already unfolding as 
positive steps for removing barriers within the community.   
 
Community Futures has become instrumental in providing business education in their Cannabis 101 workshop. 
They are also proactive in seeking partnerships and funding to support the application process and compliance 
requirements, as well as to reduce costs and confusion for applicants.  
 
As many of the outlined barriers and challenges are policy based, advocacy is a major component.  The 
Kootenay United Cannabis Association will continue to update their policy papers and build membership.  
With community input, we will advocate politically on their behalf.  With our mandate and commitment to non-
biased organizational processes we aim to keep a united movement so that the Kootenay small farmers have a 
fair chance to a prosperous future.   We will also endeavor to develop relationships throughout BC that 
promote the success of small farmers, producers, retailers and communities that have relied on cannabis 
cultivation.   
It is our hope that our advocacy and regional focus will provide agency and groundwork for other regions, and 
organizations throughout BC and Canada.    
 
The symposium corresponded with the BC Cannabis Secretariat’s consultation process. We anticipate that this 
process reflected the many voices and perspectives shared at the event. There is a general and potential 
feeling of provincial support, however it is vital that the livelihood of small farmers and rural communities reliant 
on cannabis cultivation, continues to be considered. 
 
Tracey Harvey’s thesis asserts that the success of transitioning rural economies lies in cluster groups of 
diversification and value added products.  While corporate entities are speedy at mobilizing and getting to 
market, there is the hypothesis that long term sustainability of this industry for small cultivators lies in 
cooperative groups and collectives. These business models and social structures will offer communities and 
small farmers more security and democracy as this industry unfolds. A number of coops and collectives are 
already in process in the Kootenays and we expect more forming soon in order to address the specific needs 
of small producers. 
 
Summary 
 
The Kootenay Cannabis Symposium was a landmark event for the region. The significance of an event of this 
nature has been reviewed throughout BC. For the first time the grassroots cannabis community was able to 
come out and work together to identify solutions to the many challenges they are faced with in transitioning to 
the legal market. For many outsiders to the industry it was eye opening to see a community of family people 
and everyday citizens who rely on the livelihood this plant brings them. 
 
As the many presentations and discussions reiterated during the day, the importance of and dependence on 
cannabis in this region, and throughout BC, cannot be overstated. The plant and its cultivation is intrinsic to the 
history, culture, customs and economy of the Kootenays. A number of anecdotal attempts have been made to 
quantify its contribution to the economy, however, due to the historical underground nature of the industry, the 
exact economic relevance can only be guessed.  We can categorically assert that this industry is tied deeply to 
communities, local schools and businesses, to hardware, garden supply and groceries stores.  The economic 
multiplier effect resulting from consequences of the Cannabis Act will impact families and communities 
throughout BC if this industry is not given a reasonable chance to succeed. 
 

33



Furthermore, the symposium offered an opportunity for the local cannabis community to feel the support of 
government, municipalities and regional organizations. The facilitated process that KUCA provided revealed 
the potential of how policy might have been developed had cannabis experts of the grassroots been consulted.  
These policies reflect little to no interest and understanding of the small scale producer, underpinning the 
stigmatization and barriers still faced.  We support the academic and anecdotal research presented by Tracey 
Harvey that suggests that the creation of good policy must include dialogue with those that it impacts, namely 
in this case, the small farmers and producers.  To reiterate, developing policy that integrates the pre-existing 
industry is imperative to the economic well-being of many rural communities across BC.  As the legalization 
process progresses, it is necessary and fair to ensure an atmosphere of leniency and safety in order to have 
an appropriate consultation process.   
British Columbia, and specifically the Kootenays, has the skills and workforce ready to adapt and transition to 
the new cannabis economy. In many ways this is Canada’s ‘ground zero’ for Cannabis. The wealth of 
knowledge, the community support, the clean environment and historic legacy make it prime to be a leader in 
producing quality cannabis for both the recreation and medical markets as well as value added products.   
We invite policy makers to make room at the table for rural communities in BC; including the farmers, medical 
patients and workers. And by so doing, recognizing their historical contribution and expertise and allowing 
them a reasonable and equitable opportunity to transition. 
     
 
 
              Thank You, the KUCA Directors                                  http://www.kuca.ca/ 
 
 
 
 
                     Kootenay United Cannabis Association would like to thank our sponsors 

 

 

 
 
    
 
    
 
 
 

34

http://www.kuca.ca/


PAGE 1 OF 1 

The Corporation of the Village of New Denver 

P.O. Box 40, New Denver, BC V0G 1S0 • office@newdenver.ca 

PHONE (250) 358-2316 • FAX (250) 358-7251 

TO:  Mayor and Council 

FROM:  Acting CAO 

SUBJECT:  Ktunaxa Kinbasket Treaty Advisory Committee Meeting  

DATE:  May 24, 2019 

OPTIONS: 

1. Authorize attendance at the meeting with expenses paid. 

2. Do not authorize expenses associated with meeting attendance. 

RECOMMENDATION:  That one member of Council be authorized to attend the RDEK’s Ktunaxa 

Kinbasket Treaty Advisory Committee meeting in Cranbrook on June 10, 2019, with expenses paid. 

BACKGROUND:  Councillor Fyke is the Village of New Denver’s representative on the RDEK’s 

Ktunaxa Kinbasket Treaty Advisory Committee, which meets periodically at the RDEK office in 

Cranbrook.  The next meeting is scheduled for 2:00 p.m. on June 10, 2019.  A meeting agenda will be 

circulated one week prior to the meeting.   

ANALYSIS:  Councillor Fyke has indicated his desire to attend the June 10th meeting.  A Council 

resolution is required to authorize expenses associated with attendance.   

LEGISLATIVE FRAMEWORK:  Village of New Denver Council Remuneration and Expense 

Bylaw No. 710, 2017 

 

STRATEGIC PRIORITY: Nil 

COMMUNICATION STRATEGY: Nil 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:  The estimated costs associated with attending the meeting are as follows: 

Mileage $460 

Meals $70 

Accommodation $200 

Total $730 

This falls within the amount allocated for this purpose in the Village’s Five Year Financial Plan Bylaw 

No. 722, 2019, as $2000 was budgeted for miscellaneous meeting attendance and so far $360 has been 

spent.  If expenses for attending this meeting are authorized, the funds remaining for meeting 

attendance in 2019 will be approximately $910.  Funds allocated for attending UBCM convention are 

not included in these calculations.   

 

 

 

 

35



PAGE 1 OF X 

The Corporation of the Village of New Denver 

P.O. Box 40, New Denver, BC V0G 1S0 • office@newdenver.ca 

PHONE (250) 358-2316 • FAX (250) 358-7251 

TO:  Mayor and Council 

FROM:  Acting CAO 

SUBJECT:  Sustainability Advisory Committee Appointments 

DATE: May 24, 2019  

OPTIONS: 

1. Appoint Councillors Moss and Fyke as the Council representatives and appoint Chad 

Townsend, Nadine Raynolds, Dean Spankie and David Everest as the community 

representatives. 

2. Appoint 2 (other) members of Council and 3 or 4 (other) members of the community  

RECOMMENDATION:  That Councillor Colin Moss, Councillor John Fyke, Chad Townsend, Nadine 

Raynolds, Dean Spankie and David Everest be appointed to the Village of New Denver’s Sustainability 

Advisory Committee. 

BACKGROUND:  Terms of reference for the Village of New Denver’s Sustainability Advisory 

Committee were adopted on April 9, 2019.  Committee membership shall include 2 members of 

Council and 3 or 4 members of the New Denver community, all appointed by Council.   

New Denver property owners Chad Townsend, Nadine Raynolds, Dean Spankie and David Everest 

have all expressed interest in serving on the Sustainability Advisory Committee.  Sandon residents Hal 

Wright & Vida Turok have also expressed interest in serving on the Sustainability Advisory 

Committee, and sharing their expertise relating to renewable power generation.   

ANALYSIS:  Staff recommends appointing those individuals who reside or own property in New Denver 

as the community representatives on the Committee. The Committee can still benefit from the expertise 

that Hal Wright and Vida Turok have to offer, as they can be invited to participate as non-voting 

members. 

LEGISLATIVE FRAMEWORK:  Resolution #26/2019 (Commit to transition to 100% renewable energy 

by 2050 and establish advisory committee with community representation).  

STRATEGIC PRIORITY: Nil 

COMMUNICATION STRATEGY:  Ads seeking interested parties to serve on the Committee were placed 

in the April 25th and May 9th editions of the Valley Voice. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:   Nil 

36



1

Catherine Allaway

From:
Sent: April 26, 2019 11:01 AM
To: Amanda Murphy
Subject: Sustainability Advisory Committee

Please consider me interested in being part of this new Committee, and let me know any further details as 
they become available.  
 
Thanks, 
Chad Townsend 

 
 

37



1

Catherine Allaway

From: Nadine Raynolds
Sent: May 13, 2019 9:24 AM
To: Catherine Allaway
Subject: Sustainability Advisory Committee

Hello Catherine, 
 
As per my phone call, I would like to put my name forward for the Sustainability Advisory Committee for the Village of New 
Denver. 
 
You can use this email and   for correspondence. 
 
Thanks 
Nadine 

38



39



40



1

Catherine Allaway

From: Silversmith Power & Light Corporation 
Sent: May 22, 2019 7:54 AM
To: office@newdenver.ca
Subject: Sustainability Advisory Committee

We, Hal Wright & Vida Turok, as representatives of Silversmith Power and Light wish to participate in the New Denver 
Sustainability Advisory Committee.   

Either Hal or Vida (or both) can offer our extensive knowledge as Canada's first federally certified green hydroelectric 
producer in western Canada.  We also are a major source of electrical supply for New Denver and the area.  We provide 
essential power quality stability to the entire New Denver region.  We work with numerous agencies in striving to be on the 
leading edge of greening our electrical supply and decentralizing the grid.  This movement has substantial benefits for the 
local economy, the environment and grid reliability.  We would be happy to share this knowledge and help guide New 
Denver to a better sustainable future.   

Please notify us if we can participate in this important process. 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Hal Wright & Vida Turok  
Silversmith Power & Light Corp 

 

Producing clean GREEN electricity since 1897 in Sandon, BC 
~ the Power of History ~ 

41



The Corporation of the Village of New Denver 

P.O. Box 40, New Denver, BC V0G 1S0 • office@newdenver.ca 

PHONE (250) 358-2316 • FAX (250) 358-7251 

TO:  Mayor and Council 

FROM:  Acting CFO 

SUBJECT:  Village of New Denver Credit Card 

DATE:  May 23, 2019 

 

RECOMMENDATION:   

That the Village of New Denver apply for a No Fee, Cash Back Business Visa credit card through 

the Kootenay Savings Credit Union, with a credit limit of $ 10,000.00.  The Authorized Business 

Representative will be Catherine Allaway and the Authorized User will be Lisa McGinn.  

 

BACKGROUND: 

The Kootenay Savings Credit Union Mastercard has expired and is no longer being offered. 

ANALYSIS:   

The Kootenay Savings Credit Union no longer offers the Mastercard option that expired on May 

22, 2019.  A credit card is used for online purchases and holds on booking hotels.   

LEGISLATIVE FRAMEWORK: NIL 

STRATEGIC PRIORITY:  

A credit card is needed for online purchases, vendors that do not have paying by cheque as an 

option, holds for booking hotels and occasionally for first time purchases with new vendors, 

COMMUNICATION STRATEGY: NIL 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:   

There will be a bit of a savings interest-wise in our bank account as previously the money for 

Mastercard purchases was taken out of our bank account within a day or so.  With an actual credit 

card, we would pay monthly. 

 

42



PAGE 1 OF 1 

The Corporation of the Village of New Denver 

P.O. Box 40, New Denver, BC V0G 1S0 • office@newdenver.ca 

PHONE (250) 358-2316 • FAX (250) 358-7251 

TO:  Mayor and Council 

FROM: Acting CAO  

SUBJECT: RDCK Grant Application – Housing Needs Report 

DATE: May 24, 2019  

OPTIONS: 

1. Participate in the RDCK’s Regional Housing Needs Assessment program (resolution to indicate 

support for RDCK to apply for, receive and manage the grant funding on our behalf) 

2. Apply for funding from UBCM to prepare a Housing Needs Report for New Denver 

RECOMMENDATION:  That the Village of New Denver advise the RDCK that they do not wish to 

participate in the RDCK Regional Housing Needs Assessment program. 

BACKGROUND:  Recent changes to the Local Government Act require municipalities to prepare 

Housing Needs Reports every 5 years, beginning in 2022.  UBCM has developed a Housing Needs 

Reports Program which provides 100% funding to assist with this work and New Denver is eligible for 

up to $15,000.  The program has a budget of $5 million and will run for three years – the first intake 

has an application deadline of May 31st and the deadline for the next intake is November 29, 2019.   

The RDCK intends to make an application by May 31st to access $150,000 through this program (the 

maximum allowable) and has invited the Village of New Denver to be a partner in the project.  In this 

scenario, the grant would be administered by the RDCK, and the work would be done by RDCK staff 

or consultants hired by the RDCK. There would be no cost to the Village of New Denver as the data 

that the RDCK is required to collect in order to develop a regional plan includes the data specific to 

New Denver.  The Villages of Silverton, Nakusp, Kaslo and Creston are taking this route but the 

Village of Slocan is still undecided. 

A second option would see the Village of New Denver applying for funding directly from UBCM, 

administering the grant and directing the preparation of a Housing Needs Assessment program specific 

to New Denver.  New Denver could access up to $15,000 to offset the associated costs.     

ANALYSIS:  Discussions with RDCK staff have indicated that even if New Denver does not choose to 

participate at this time, they would be open to allowing New Denver to join the RDCK program at a 

later date.  RDCK staff has also indicated a willingness to explore other possible options for 

collaboration on this issue.    

LEGISLATIVE FRAMEWORK:  Local Government Act Div. 22 (s. 585) 

STRATEGIC PRIORITY: Nil 

COMMUNICATION STRATEGY: Nil 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:  As the grant provides 100% funding, the financial impact on the Village 

of New Denver is not significant, regardless of which option is selected.   

43



 

 

Regional District of Central Kootenay 
  
Box 590, 202 Lakeside Drive, Nelson, BC  V1L 5R4 Web: www.rdck.ca 
Telephone: (250) 352-6665 Email: info@rdck.bc.ca 
BC Toll Free: 1-800-268-7325 Fax: (250) 352-9300 

 

 

 
MUNICIPALITIES:  Cities: Castlegar, Nelson   Town: Creston  Villages: Kaslo, Nakusp, New Denver, Salmo, Silverton and Slocan 
ELECTORAL AREAS:  A-Wynndel/East Shore Kootenay Lake  B C D E F G H-The Slocan Valley IJ-Lower Arrow/Columbia K-The Arrow Lakes 

 

   File No. 5200-20-HAP 
 
May 10, 2019 
 
 
 
Dear Corporate Administrative Officer: 
 
RE: REGIONAL DISTRICT OF CENTRAL KOOTENAY APPLICATION TO UBCM HOUSING NEEDS REPORT PROGRAM 
 
This letter is to follow up with you regarding the Regional District of Central Kootenay application under the UBCM 
Housing Needs Report Program for funding to complete a Regional Housing Needs Assessment.  
 
The Regional Housing Needs Assessment is the 1st phase in developing a Regional Housing Action Plan. It is also a 
relatively recent requirement under the Local Government Act which requires Local Governments to develop a 
Housing Needs Report every 5 years to better inform and understand the kind of housing most needed in their 
communities. This initiative will allow the 11 rural Electoral Areas to pursue innovative housing solutions and better 
support and align with municipal initiatives. It also provides opportunity for partnership and collaboration, by 
allowing project funding to be applied to projects that include more than one electoral area or municipality. Each 
plan area is eligible for up to $15,000.00 in funding (scaled by population) which can be pooled to a maximum of 
$150,000.00 per application. The exception to this Provincial funding program for eligible funding would be 
communities that have undertaken Housing Needs Assessments within the last five years who are already in 
compliance with this legislative requirement. 
 
The purpose of this letter is to inform you there is an opportunity for partnership in this grant application. If your 
municipality is interested in this initiative there may be advantage to considering our assessments together. Under 
UBCM’s granting process each partnering local government is required to submit a Council or Board resolution that 
clearly states their approval for the primary applicant to apply for, receive, and manage the funding on their behalf. 
An example resolution could be as follows: 
 

THAT the (Participating Municipality) provide approval for Regional District of Central Kootenay staff 
to submit application to the Union of British Columbia Municipalities (UBCM) Housing Needs Report 
Program in support of a Regional Housing Needs Assessment for the full amount of eligible costs in 
the amount of $150,000.00 prior to the May 31, 2019 deadline and that such funding be managed by 
the Regional District of Central Kootenay on behalf of the (Participating Municipality). 

 
If successful, each participating municipality will be contacted, in order to collaborate on the development of a 
Request for Proposal (RFP) for the eligible works to determine individual project needs and project scope.  
 
More information on the UBCM Housing Needs Report Program can be found here:  

https://www.ubcm.ca/EN/main/funding/lgps/housing-needs-report-program.html 
 
If unable to participate, a Letter of Support for this initiative would be appreciated. A call out for participation will 
also be made during the 2nd phase in developing a Regional Housing Action Plan. A draft Letter of Support has been 
attached to this letter for those who wish to pursue that option. 
  

44

http://www.google.ca/imgres?q=recycling+logo&um=1&hl=en&sa=N&biw=1680&bih=899&tbm=isch&tbnid=mp7V0nhrscyH6M:&imgrefurl=http://www.clker.com/clipart-68601.html&docid=mFDigAsdyku6hM&imgurl=http://www.clker.com/cliparts/c/0/9/4/1282055999653223473recycling logo-hi.png&w=600&h=566&ei=W1k2UJ-aK-WFyQHviIHACQ&zoom=1&iact=hc&vpx=183&vpy=360&dur=49&hovh=218&hovw=231&tx=144&ty=142&sig=112683662568513479664&page=1&tbnh=152&tbnw=161&start=0&ndsp=32&ved=1t:429,r:8,s:0,i:125
http://www.rdck.ca/
mailto:info@rdck.bc.ca
https://www.ubcm.ca/EN/main/funding/lgps/housing-needs-report-program.html


Sincerely, 
 

 
Meeri Durand, RPP 
Senior Project Planer 
 
MD/MD 
 
Enclosures: Draft Letter of Support for Application to UBCM Housing Needs Report Program 
  

45



1

Catherine Allaway

From: Meeri Durand <MDurand@rdck.bc.ca>
Sent: May 10, 2019 11:15 AM
To: 'pmierau@nelson.ca'; 'smarshall@castlegar.ca'; Anne Williams; 'ross.beddoes@creston.ca'; 

'office@newdenver.ca'; 'cao@silverton.ca'; 'cao@villageofslocan.ca'; 'nandrijancic@nelson.ca'; Neil Smith; 
'cao@nakusp.ca'; Curtis Wullum (cwullum@kootenay.com); 'norm@lowerkootenay.com'

Subject: RDCK Regional Housing Needs Report 
Attachments: 2019-05-09-Housing-Needs-Ltr-UBCM.pdf

Categories: AGENDA

Good Morning, 
 
In follow up to our email dated May 3, 2019, please find attached correspondence with a Draft Council Resolution or 
alternatively a Letter of Support, that can be used in support of this initiative. 
 
We appreciate your participation and look forward to working with all of you as we move this project forward whether as a 
partner or as a participant. 
 
Kind regards, 
 

Meeri Durand, MCIP RPP 
Senior Project Planner 

 
Regional District of Central Kootenay 
Box 590, 202 Lakeside Drive, Nelson, BC V1L 5R4 
Phone: (250) 352‐8162   Fax: (250) 352‐9300 
Web: www.rdck.ca    Friend us on Facebook 

 
 

From: Dana Hawkins  
Sent: May-03-19 4:33 PM 
To: 'pmierau@nelson.ca'; 'smarshall@castlegar.ca'; Anne Williams; 'ross.beddoes@creston.ca'; Neil Smith; Laurie Taylor; 
'office@newdenver.ca'; 'cao@silverton.ca'; 'cao@villageofslocan.ca' 
Subject: RDCK Regional Housing Needs Report  
 
Good afternoon,  
 
This email is to advise you that the Regional District of Central Kootenay will be applying for the UBCM Housing Needs 
Report Program by May 31st for funds to complete a 2019 Regional Housing Needs Assessment.  
 
The Regional Housing Needs Assessment is the 1st phase in developing a Regional Housing Action Plan. It is also a relatively 
recent requirement under the Local Government Act which requires Local Governments to develop a Housing Needs Report 
every 5 years to better inform and understand the kind of housing most needed in their communities. This initiative will 
allow the 11 rural electoral areas to pursue innovative housing solutions, and better support and align with municipal 
initiatives. 
 
The purpose for this email is to inform you there is an opportunity for partnership in this grant application. If your 
municipality is interested in this initiative there may be advantage to considering our assessments together. Under UBCM’s 
granting process each partnering local government is required to submit a Council or Board resolution that clearly states 
their approval for the primary applicant to apply for, receive, and manage the funding on their behalf. 

46



2

 
More information on the UBCM Housing Needs Report Program can be found here:  

https://www.ubcm.ca/EN/main/funding/lgps/housing-needs-report-program.html  
 
I would be happy to follow up and discuss further with a phone call.  
 
 
Warm regards,  
 

Dana Hawkins, MCIP, RPP 
Planner 

 
Regional District of Central Kootenay 
Box 590, 202 Lakeside Drive, Nelson, BC V1L 5R4 
Phone: (250) 352‐8153   Fax: (250) 352‐9300 
Web: www.rdck.ca    Friend us on Facebook 

 

Representing Diverse Communities in the Kootenays 
Please think about the environment before you print 
This email may contain confidential and/or privileged information. If you are not the intended recipient or have received this email in 
error, please notify the sender immediately and destroy this email. Any unauthorized copying, disclosure or distribution of the 
information contained in this email is prohibited. 
 

47



PAGE 1 OF 1 

The Corporation of the Village of New Denver 

P.O. Box 40, New Denver, BC V0G 1S0 • office@newdenver.ca 

PHONE (250) 358-2316 • FAX (250) 358-7251 

TO:  Mayor and Council 

FROM: Acting CAO   

SUBJECT: Appointment of Approving Officer  

DATE: May 13, 2019  

OPTIONS: 

1. Appoint Catherine Allaway as the Approving Officer for the Village of New Denver 

2. Appoint another individual as the Approving Officer for the Village of New Denver 

RECOMMENDATION:  That Catherine Allaway be appointed as the Approving Officer for the Village 

of New Denver. 

BACKGROUND:  In accordance with section 77 of the Land Title Act, the municipal council must, by 

resolution, appoint a person as an approving officer.  At the April 29, 2014 Regular Meeting, the 

Council of the Village of New Denver appointed Bruce Woodbury as the Approving Officer for the 

municipality (resolution #215/2014).  As per section 77(2) of the Land Title Act, the approving officer 

appointed by the municipality must be an employee of the municipalitiy or under contract with the 

municipality.  As Mr. Woodbury is no longer an employee of the Village of New Denver, an alternate 

appointment should be considered.   

ANALYSIS:  The Approving Officer is required to consider applications for subdivision within the 

municipal boundaries, in accordance with the provisions of the Land Title Act.   

LEGISLATIVE FRAMEWORK:  Land Title Act (Division 3 – Appointment Powers and Duties of 

Approving Officers) 

STRATEGIC PRIORITY:  Nil 

COMMUNICATION STRATEGY:  Nil 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:  Nil 

 

 

 

 

 

 

48


	agenda 2019 05 28
	ND DG Proposal v
	SAM STEELE DAYS 2019
	Rural Dividend notice
	Selkirk One River
	Kootenay Cannabis Symposium_Formatted_Final
	memo - RDEK TAC meeting
	memo - sustainability committee appointments
	from Nadine R_Redacted
	from Dean S & D Everest
	from Hal Vida
	2019-05-09-Housing-Needs-Ltr-UBCM
	RDCK Housing email
	memo - appoint Approving Officer
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

